ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 14, 2003
3:22 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 257

"An Act relating to the disclosure requirenents for real estate
| i censees, to disciplinary action against real estate |icensees,
to private actions against real estate licensees, and to real
estate |icensee agency relationships, fiduciary duties, and
ot her duties; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 257 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 255

"An Act anending the Al aska Wage and Hour Act as it relates to
flexible work hour plans, the provision of training wages, and
the definitions of certain terns; and repealing the exenption in
the Act fromthe paynent of m ni num wages for |earners.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 257

SHORT TI TLE: REAL ESTATE LI CENSEES: DUTI ES & CLAI M5
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
04/ 10/ 03 0912 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 14, 2003



04/ 10/ 03 0912 (H) L&C, JUD
04/ 14/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 255
SHORT TI TLE: WAGES: TRAI NI NG/ FLEX- TI ME/ DEFI NI TI ONS
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

04/ 09/ 03 0868 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 09/ 03 0868 (H L&C, FIN

04/ 14/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE NORVMAN ROKEBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented HB 257 and HB 255.

PEGGY ANN McCONNOCHI E, Real tor;

Menber

Agency Task Force

Al aska Associ ation of Realtors

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As a nenber of an industry task force that
is rewiting the real estate agency |aw, spoke in opposition to
HB 257.

SHAWN PAUL, Associ ate Broker

ReMax of Juneau;

Pr esi dent - El ect

Sout heast Board of Realtors

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 257 as president-el ect
of the Sout heast Board of Realtors.

CAROLE W NTON, Licensed Real Estate Broker;

Pr esi dent

Al aska Associ ation of Realtors

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 257 on behalf of the
Al aska Associ ation of Realtors.

TRACEY RI CKER, Broker

Ri cker and Associ at es;
Pr esi dent

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 14, 2003



Sout heast Board of Realtors

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Questioned why HB 257 would dimnish
protection of the public.

JEANNI E JOHNSON, Licensed Broker

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Identified two <concerns wth HB 257
i nvol vi ng t he low threshold for exenpting conmmer ci al
transactions and the retroactivity clause that affects a current
| awsui t .

JEAN KAY, President

Val | ey Board of Realtors;

Real Estate Agent

ReMax of Wasill a;

Board Menber

Al aska Association of Realtors

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed HB 257 which pronotes commerci al
real estate interests.

PADDY CQOAN, Associ ate Broker

Valley Ofice

Prudential Vista Real Estate;

Past Presi dent

Val | ey Board of Realtors;

Secretary

Al aska Associ ation of Realtors;

Pr esi dent - El ect

Wasi | | a Chanber of Conmerce

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 257, noting that
buyers and sellers can still file conplaints with brokers, nake
a claimagainst the surety fund, or file a lawsuit over fraud.

DON ZI MVERVAN

Real Est at eAl ternative. com

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 257, noting that
it does not harm consunmers who are nore sophisticated and can do
their own research on the Internet.

MARK LEE, CCIM (Certified Commercial Investnent Menber), Broker

Lee Realty
Wasill a, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 14, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 257, but
reconmended excluding all Ilease activity from any disclosure
requirenents.

HOMRD TRI CKEY

Prudential Vista;

Prudential Jack White

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of two sections and
(two proposed anendnents to) HB 257 that halt frivolous |awsuits
on technicalities and affect pending |awsuits.

RI CK FULLER, Owner, Broker

Prudential Vista Real Estate

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As the owner of the conpany currently
involved in the lawsuit that would be affected by HB 257,
answer ed questi ons.

CHRI S STEPHENS, CCIM President

Bond, Stephens & Johnson

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing the |argest commercial real
estate firm in Alaska, testified in favor of HB 257 and
described the problens with dual agency and discl osure under the
current | aw.

TOM MARTI N, Broker,

A+ Realty

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified against HB 257 and supported
raising the threshold for commercial transaction exenptions.

DAVE FEEKEN, Chair

Legislative Commttee

Al aska Associ ation of Realtors

ReMax of the Peninsul a

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to HB 257, describing
sone of the background of the current agency dispute.

DAVI D GARRI SON, Associ at e Broker

AAR #1 Buyers' Agency,

Menmber

Anchor age Board of Realtors;

Buyer Agent

Nat i onal Association of Exclusive Buyer Agents

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 14, 2003



Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 257, noting an agent's
fiduciary responsibility to represent either the buyer or the
seller.

LI NDA GARRI SON

AAR #1 Buyers' Agency

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to HB 257.

FRANK ROSE, President

Al aska Hotel and Lodgi ng Associ ati on;

Owner, Al aska Lodgi ng Managenent

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 255.

JON FAULKNER, Owner/ oper at or

Land's End Resort

Honmer, Al aska;

Van Cuil der Hot el

Sewar d, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 255, particularly
the provisions <clarifying the definitions of supervisory,
prof essi onal, and executive enpl oyees.

KAREN ROG NA, Al aska Hospitality Alliance
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 255.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-34, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:22 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahl strom Gatt o, Rokeber g, Crawford, and
GQuttenberg were present at the call to order.

HB 257- REAL ESTATE LI CENSEES: DUTI ES & CLAI M5

Number 0045

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 257, "An Act relating to the disclosure
requirenents for real estate licensees, to disciplinary action
against real estate licensees, to private actions against real

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 14, 2003



estate I i censees, and to real estate | i censee agency
rel ati onshi ps, fiduciary duties, and other duties; and providing
for an effective date.”

Nunmber 0080

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN di sclosed that he is a licensed real estate
agent, associate broker licensee with Prudential Vista Real
Estate of Anchorage.

Number 0097

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, as sponsor of HB 257, disclosed that he
is a licensed real estate broker. He said that if the bill
passes, it could give sone benefit to his business, although he
is not actively pursuing real estate at this tinme. He explained
that he is still licensed and could sell real estate in the
future.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG recalled that several years ago he

sponsored a bill which rewote nost of the Al aska real estate
| aw. Wth the help of the Alaska Association of Realtors and
| ocal [real estate] boards, the occupational licensing laws [for
real estate] were substantially updated and rewitten. One

section of the real estate law, AS 08.88.396 [Disclosure of
agency to prospective buyers and sellers] was not revised in
anticipation of industry input. Representative Rokeberg said he
has been working with an industry task force for the l|ast year
and a half, waiting for an overall fix for this part of the |aw
Because of the conplexity of this issue, an industry -generated

solution is not yet available, he noted. Menbers of the real
estate industry are currently working on a draft of a different
bill, which will eventually cone before this commttee.

Nunber 0333

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG testified that HB 257 exenpts |icensees
acting on comrercial real estate transactions from the current
di scl osure requirenents. In addition, the bill provides that
| i censees handling exenpt transactions have the duty to act wth
honesty, fairness, and good faith in representing both parties.
He explained that these [three terns] are |egal standards which
are commonly used in the uniform comercial code and in other
comerci al transactions. These standards protect the interest
of the parties in the comercial activity.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG al so noted that HB 257 provides that if

a licensee fails to properly disclose a relationship, [the
injured party] can file a claim against the Real Estate Surety
Fund but [cannot file a lawsuit] in court. A retroactivity
clause in the bill applies to any actions pending in court for

whi ch a final judgnment has not been rendered.
Nunber 0503

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he sponsored HB 257 because the
industry is facing vexatious litigation. He pointed out that 25
percent of Alaska's donestic product involves the sale of real

est at e, comer ci al br okerage appraisal, construction, and
simlar activities. He said that this legislature should take
note of these activities and their inportance to the state's
[ econony] . He said there's a potential class action suit

agai nst every real estate broker and licensee in the state that
could cost mllions of dollars and bring the real estate
industry to its knees.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that sone nenbers of the
real estate profession are not happy with HB 257. He said he
has alerted the task force that if it could not craft a
conprehensive solution for this matter, he intended to proceed
on a small version of the bill, until the industry can work out
the larger solution. He said he is happy to work with all folks
in the industry to resolve this issue. However, he didn't
believe it is prudent for the legislature to wait wuntil the
industry crafts a final resolution.

Nunmber 0663

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked about Section 7, page 5, lines 6-
15, which deals with applicability and retrospectivity. He also
asked if there were any pending lawsuits that this bill would

i npact .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he was aware of only one [court]
action that HB 257 would affect, and indicated he supported that
[intervention] because the l|legislature has the right to [wite
| aws that affect pending |awsuits].

Nunber 0719

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked who wll be the wnners and the
| osers if HB 257 passes.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that the winners wll be the
peopl e of Alaska if comerce can be conducted in the way it was
before the current law was witten in the early 1990s. He said
that the current |aw has never worked properly. Wtnesses w |
testify today about the barriers erected by the current |aw,
such as the [excessive] anount of paperwork it requires. For
exanpl e, one commercial real estate brokerage firm has devel oped
17 pages of forns to nmeet the disclosure requirenents as to what
type of agency relationship the broker has with the buyer, the
seller, or both.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified his question to ask who would
gain and who would | ose nonetarily under this bill. He said he
guessed that the people who would gain nonetarily would be the
peopl e who engage in the transactions.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that is not the case. He said the

current losers are the public and perhaps the I|icensees. The
only wi nner [under the current law] is the person who's bringing
the lawsuit [against the conmmercial brokerage firm. He said
the interests of the consuner should be paranmount in this
statute. Ther ef or e, this bill specifically deals wth
commercial agents, [under circunstances] where there 1is no
def endabl e consuner protection theory. [Cients of comerci al

real estate transactions are] sophisticated and know edgeabl e
parties. The other [inpetus behind HB 257] is to cut off the
class-action |litigation on a law that was poorly drafted,
difficult to inplenent, and has needed fixing for a nunber of
years. [ Even though the industry] couldn't reach general
consensus [on how to repair this law], this bill cuts off the
massive litigation that is occurring in the Lower 48.

Number 0932

PEGGY ANN MCONNOCH E, Realtor; Menber, Agency Task Force,
Al aska Association of Realtors, explained that she has been a
realtor since 1982. She testified that [HB 257] does not
reflect realtors' standards of practice in Al aska. Furthernore,
no other state in the country exenpts commercial real estate
agents from disclosing whom they work for to the buying,
selling, renting, or |easing public.

M5. McCONNOCHI E noted that [Section 1, the Legislative Findings
and Intent, page 1, lines 8-12] reads,

(1) the purpose of the requirenent that a real estate
| i censee make certain disclosures about the |icensee's

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 14, 2003



representation is to provide consuner protection to
t hose people who may not be famliar with their |ega
responsibilities and rely in part on real estate
| i censees for advice when buying, selling, and |easing
real estate;

M5. MCONNOCHI E disagreed wth the description of a conmmercia
real estate transaction [on page 4, lines 16-23] that involves
the sale or lease of a four-plex or larger structure, the sale
of comrercial property worth $100,000 or nore, or the sale or
| ease of real estate having a gross |ease revenue that exceeds
$12,000 a year. She asked why a person buying, selling,
renting, or Jleasing [under these circunstances] needs |ess
protection than a person buying a $300, 000 resi dence.

M5. MCONNOCHI E said that the "Agency Task Force" has spent
al nost 11 nonths rewiting [real estate] agency | aws. She said
the law is very conplex; the rewite is not going to happen in a
day, and her group wants it done correctly. She said her group
appreciates the past revisions to the agency law and has |ong
recogni zed that the current agency |aw does not work as well as
it shoul d. However, [comrercial agent disclosure] needs to be
t hought through and planned very carefully; her group does not
want to cone back in another year, saying "Wwoops, we forgot

sonmething; we'd like to change it." The Agency Task Force has
proposed regulation changes that the Departnment of Law is
revi ewi ng. She said she hopes those changes will go through
qui ckly because those changes will take care of sonme of the
problens evident in the industry. She predicted a whol esale
change in agency law in the near future, saying "If we could
have it to you today, we would, but we don't." She said the
[ Alaska Association of Realtors] should conplete its review by
the end of the nmonth and she guaranteed that it will be back to
the commttee with a conpleted bill. In the neantine, [HB 257]

does not do it, she said.

M5. MCONNOCHI E cautioned against the retroactive part of the

bill because it does not protect the public. She said her group
believes that real estate statutes nust do two things: pr ot ect
the buying, selling, leasing, and renting public and assure

accountability on the part of real estate agents. She conmended
Representative Gatto's question about identifying the wnners

and | osers [of HB 257]. She said the winner would be a snall
group of [comercial] real estate agents who don't want to
follow the agency | aws. She rem nded commttee nenbers that

buying a $100,000 commercial property or four-plex is no

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 14, 2003



different than buying a $300, 000-$350, 000 house. She urged the
commttee not to pass the bill out of conmttee.

M5. McCONNOCHIE, in response to Representative Rokeberg, replied
that she is speaking for the Al aska Association of Realtors,
whose president wll testify today that the association is
opposed to the bill. The Agency Task Force and the
[association's] legislative conmttee nmet again today to review
the bill and voted agai nst HB 257.

Number 1217
SHAWN PAUL, Associ ate Broker, ReMax of Juneau; President-El ect,

Sout heast Board of Realtors, explained that board had an
energency neeting today and voted against supporting [HB 257]

for many of the reasons outlined by M. MConnochie. He
addressed the question of who wins and who loses [with the
passage of this bill]. He reiterated that the losers wll be
the buying, selling, renting, and leasing public; the wnners
will be those agents who aren't follow ng the disclosure |aws or
the [real estate industry's] standards of ©practice. He
highlighted the bill's change of "agent" to "licensee" and

cauti oned against doing away with the concept of agent. He said
[the Southeast Board of Realtors] is opposed to the "get out of
jail free" clause at the end of the bill [Section 7, page 5].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a person getting a real estate
| i cense has to know Al aska real estate | aw

MR. PAUL replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what other part of the real estate
| aw uses the word agent.

MR. PAUL said he understands that the term agent is a conmonly
used term

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that when the rest of the
real estate statutes were revised six years ago, the word
"licensee" replaced the use of "agent". He al so asked whet her
cormercial realtors in Anchorage and larger cities practice
differently than those in Southeast Al aska.

Number 1376

MR. PAUL said he doesn't practice in Anchorage so doesn't know
if there are differences in day-to-day practices. He said he

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 14, 2003



does refer clients to Anchorage professionals who have high

et hical standards and who perform a good service. He said
realtors in [Southeast Al aska] do a fine job of disclosure [to
clients]. In response to Representative Rokeberg's question

about the amount of commercial activity in Juneau and Sout heast
Al aska, he deferred to other w tnesses.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked about the difference between
"agent" and "licensee" and asked why it was necessary to change
these terns in the real estate statutes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that there was concern about
what agency neans in common |law principle of agent and its
application to real estate brokerage. It's a great source of
confusion between the practitioners, the public, and the courts.
There's no use of the agency principle laws in the creation of
fiduciary rel ationshi ps between any kind of narketer of any kind
of comodity in the world, except real estate brokerage where
the term agent cones into play, where one is actually an agent.
When the words "broker”™ and "agent" were used in real estate
law, the original intention was to indicate the broker as the
principle and the agent as the subagent, or the relationship
between the licensee and the broker, not the client and the
|icensee. This is where there's been a corruption. The courts

have corrupted that. It's a very unique situation under the
common | aw where there's been applications such as that. VWhat
"we" did actually conpounded the confusion by statute over the
years. That's why when the law was rewitten the |anguage was
changed from "agent" to "licensee" because the agent is the
agent of t he br oker, t he pri nci pl e; if there's an

agency/principle relationship, it exists between the broker and
the I|icensee. O herwise the individual client, if there is in
fact an agency/principle relationship under the law, wll be
vicarious liable for the act of the licensee, an issue that cane
up on the floor of the House just |ast week. He expl ai ned that
vicarious liability is actually being created on the part of the
clientele, which isn't the intent. It gets conplicated, he
sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that [HB 257] renoves the
requi renent that conmercial agents meke disclosure and allows an
infjured client to [seek financial redress] through the real
estate surety fund. It's a sinple approach, he said, an
"interim stop-gap neasure.” He noted his disappointment with
the testinony [in opposition to HB 257].

Number 1533

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO confirmed that M. Paul works for ReMax [ of
Juneau], that he is an associate broker, an agent, and a
| icensee. Representative Gatto asked if M. Paul uses the words
agent and |icense interchangeably.

MR. PAUL replied that an agent has received a license through
the state and that every licensee is an agent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ained that wunder Alaska statute,
[real estate professionals] are licensees, which is the source
of the confusion.

Number 1586

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said that when he has contracted with an
agent to buy property, that person was acting as his agent. He
said he doesn't understand why the |egislature changed the term
[agent] to |icensee.

Nunmber 1613

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG clarified that the real estate person is
not his agent but his contractee. He said Representative
Crawford contracted with this person to perform a service. So

the person has a contractual obligation wwth him To establish
the agency/principle relationship is not accurate other than the
superior courts in Alaska corrupted the [distinction] by using
that common |aw principle. The real estate person is not your
agent, the person is your contractee that perforns duties that
arise out of the nature of the relationship. They don't have a
common |aw principal/agency relationshinp. In Alaska |aw, the
[real estate] listings belong to the broker; they don't belong
to the licensee, which is problematic because it gets into an
area called "subagency." He indicated the need to elimnate
that [area of |aw. Part of the problem is public perception,
the public believes that special duties arise out of the fact
that they're dealing with this |icensee. Al t hough duties do
exist, the question is with regard to the scope of duties and
whet her the agency/principle relationship exists.

Number 1672

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD recounted occasions when he has bought
houses and never comrunicated with the sellers. He said he
thought the real estate |icensee was working as his agent. He

noted that when he represents his fellow ironwrkers as a job

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 14, 2003



steward, he's acting as their agent. He said he didn't
understand [why agent is not an accurate term for a person
selling real estate]. This bill appears to take sone of the
[di sclosure] responsibility away fromthe |icensee.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d that Representative Crawford may be
confused because of the way this one section of the law still
r eads. In Representative Crawford's case, [the real estate
licensee] would be a buyer's agent because that's what the
statute says. However, the point is that the courts and the
practice has been t hat there's been this artificial
agency/principle relationship established. Under the real
estate statutes witten around 1991 or 1992, there could arise
situations of dual agency in which the buyer's agent is also the
seller's agent. He said there are duties between the client and
the particular |icensee; those duties should be defined not as
an agent/principle relationship but as a contract relationshinp.
He pointed out that one issue in HB 257 is to help consuners

understand what they'Il get [from a real estate |icensee
handling commerci al property]. [ The issue] is pretty
conplicated, he admtted. All  [HB 257 does] 1is exenpt
comercial agents [from disclosure requirenents].

Number 1765

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if Representative Rokeberg is
changing the word "agent"” to "licensee" because of sonme court
deci si ons.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied yes, in part. He added t hat
this change [in term nology] will meke this part of the [real
estate] law conformwth the rest of the statute, which uses the
term | icensee not agent. This bill is really pretty innocent,

except for what it does for comrercial agents, he renarked.
Number 1809

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM inquired as to how the public is best
served by renoving the disclosure [requirenent].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that the bill does not renopve

di sclosure [responsibility from all real estate licensees]; it
just exenpts commercial agents from disclosure. [A forthcom ng]
bill will change that, but this bill doesn't. It only exenpts

commercial agents and makes any [subsequent] |awsuits subject to
surety fund recoveries.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM confirmed that a regular |icensee
[selling residential r eal est at e] is not exenpt [from
di sclosure], only [a |licensee selling] comrercial property.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG confirnmed that [HB 257] won't affect
nost of the people testifying today unless they do commerci al
wor K.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked what percentage of [real estate]
busi ness is comrerci al .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it depends on the |ocale.

Nunber 1872

CAROLE WNTQON, Licensed Real Estate Broker; President, Al aska
Associ ation of Realtors, infornmed the commttee that she has
been licensed since 1974 and does [residential] sales as well as
comercial |eases and sales. She noted that she has been a
menber of the [association's] Agency Task Force since its
i nception June 2002. The group has net alnost weekly, wth
Representati ve Rokeberg in attendance nost of the tine. She
said she appreciates his sponsoring a bill handling the agency
changes that are necessary for the real estate industry. She

clarified that all real estate brokers are |icensed under the
same license; there is no separate |license for people selling
comercial real estate. Therefore, it would be very difficult
for sone |icensees to abide by rules of agency while others did
not .

M5. WNTON said [the Agency Task Force] has tried [addressing
the problemy through two directions; the first was through
regul ati on changes. Those changes passed the board of directors
[of the Al aska Association of Realtors] |ast Septenber and were
forwarded to the Real Estate Conm ssion, which approved them
The Departnent of Law is now review ng the changes. She said
that Representative Rokeberg had alerted the association that he
woul d take action. She enphasized that she would like to see
[the solution] done right the first time, [thereby avoiding a
subsequent request] to the legislature for a revision. V5.
Wnton explained that the second part of the proposed sol ution
is a statute change, which would reflect the standards of
practice in the industry today. This bill does not reflect the
industry's current standards of practice, she observed.

M5. WNTON noted that a real estate I|icensee nust disclose
whet her he or she is the agent of the buyer, the agent of the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 14, 2003



seller, or a dual agent. She said that nost |icensees don't
have any problem doing that; it is the law. She said she's not
sure why sonme realtors doing commercial work in other parts of
the state have a problemw th disclosure. She said that clients

want to know up front who the licensee is working for -- the
buyer, the seller, or both. The law has a provision for
[notifying the client of dual agency]; it is clearly described

and is used all the tine, she said.

M5. WNTON explained that consuner protection and public
awareness are the primary goals of the <changes in the
regul ati ons and statutes. The public should be well inforned
and shoul d know for whomthe |icensee worKks.

Nunber 2011

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that he renoved the [reference to]
rent al activities from [HB 257] based on his earlier
conversation with her. He asked why Ms. Wnton stated that this
bill doesn't reflect standards of practice in the industry and
questioned if it is because the bill exenpts comerci al
transactions from di scl osure.

M5. WNTON confirned his statenent.

CHAI R ANDERSON restated Ms. Wnton's position that this standard
of practice [of disclosure] is relevant to all realtors and this
bill exenpts one group of realtors [those doing commerci al
busi ness] .

M5. WNTON agreed. She said all of a sudden in this bill,
comrercial realtors don't have to tell their clients for whom
t hey are working.

Nunber 2046

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referenced t he applicability and
retrospectivity clause in Section 7, page 5, and asked M.
W nton her opinion of this provision, which reads:

"(a) The provisions of this Act apply to a real estate
transaction that occurs before, on, or after the
effective date of this Act, and to that extent, are
retrospective..

(b)...applies to an action pending in a court in the
state in which a final judgnment has not been rendered

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 14, 2003



before the effective date of this Act and, to that
extent, is retrospective...”

CHAIR ANDERSON confirnmed that Ms. Wnton is president of the
Al aska Association of Realtors. He asked how nany nenbers are
commercial realtors versus residential realtors.

Number 2130

M5. WNTON said that realtors don't distinguish between people
who deal in commercial or residential property.

CHAI R ANDERSON cited the letter in the nenbers' bill packet from
t he conpany of Bond, Stephens & Johnson, which offers conmmercial
real estate services. He asked if any nenbers of that firm were
active in the Al aska Association of Realtors.

M5. WNTON said she did not have a list of association nenbers
at hand.

CHAI R ANDERSON confirmed that the association includes realtors
who handle conmmercial and residential property, and that the
associ ation nenbers voted, urging the [House Labor and Comrerce
Standi ng] Committee to vote against this bill

REPRESENTATI VE  ROKEBERG  asked whet her t he associ ation's
| egislative conmttee or the full nenbership voted against the
bill.

M5. WNTON explained that the legislative committee with the
approval of the president is tantamount to getting the approva
of the board of directors.

Nunber 2179

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he has been a broker in Al aska for
al nost 30 years. He asked if commercial real estate |icensees
are active in the Al aska Associ ati on of Realtors.

M5. WNTON replied that the association includes quite a few
comerci al brokers. She said she doesn't know how many
commercial brokers are licensed in the state. There are
| i censees who are not realtors, she said. Realtors conformto a
hi gher code of ethics.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if, generally speaking, conmerci al
realtors are not involved in the associ ation.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 14, 2003



M5. W NTON responded that she has no way of knowi ng that, since
the association doesn't distinguish between realtors handling
residential and conmercial property.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG said that in Anchorage, there are
realtors who specialize in comercial activity. In his
experi ence, comer ci al br okers are not active in the
association, which tends to focus on residential brokerage
activities.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked if there's a comercial br oker age
associ ation.

M5. WNTON replied yes; it's a subsidiary of the National
Associ ation of Realtors. She explained that the Al aska
Association of Realtors is one of the 50 state nenbers of the
Nat i onal Associ ati on of Realtors.

Nunber 2249

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD expl ained that he is |ooking at buying
sone acreage for commercial purposes. Wen he called the
realtor listed on the sign, the person asked if he would be
using his own agent or if he would like this conpany to be his
agent for a dual agency. He noted that this is a typical

conversation in his experience and asked what would change if
[ HB 257] passed.

M5. WNTON replied that the realtor wouldn't have to advise him
that he has the option of using his own agent or of working with
that realtor. According to current state |law, the broker needs
to inform the client during the first min contact that the
broker is working for the seller, or can work for both with the
approval of the seller and the buyer.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if the bill takes away the right
of [court] action against a realtor who doesn't disclose [these
options].

Number 2329

CHAIR ANDERSON asked for an exanple of how HB 257 would
adversely affect the consuner

Nunber 2370

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 14, 2003



M5. McCONNCCHI E said a consunmer would call a broker whose sign
was posted on a conmercial property. The broker would give sone

information about the property. The consuner mght have
concerns about the use of the property and the required zoning
for the commercial enterprise. The broker would have no

responsibility to tell the seller whether the current zoning is
applicable for the client's use.

TAPE 03-34, SIDE B

Number 2380

M5. MCONNOCH E explained that the broker wuld have no
responsibility to the owner or the seller -- only to the
broker's own pocket book. She described that [lack of

responsibility] as the fatal flaw [in HB 257].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he took exception to M.
McConnochi e's description; he said that's not the intention of
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD said that he learned from other sources
that a good portion of this property was |listed as wetl ands.
The first agent he talked to said he could use his own agent.
He asked if there's any wong doing since that broker didn't
have a responsibility to disclose the wetland status of the

property.

M5. MCONNOCH E said disclosing information about the property
is a separate issue than disclosing agency requirenents [e.g.

who the broker is working for]. The basic information about the
type of property would still have to be disclosed, regardless of
whet her the broker was or wasn't his agent. A Dbroker working

for the buyer would help the buyer figure out how to use the
property.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG directed attention to the |anguage on

page 4, lines 30-31, requiring that |icensees have to "act wth
honesty, fairness, and good faith" in representing or dealing
with these people. He said the standards change in HB 257, but
realtors will still be responsible, and standards of practice
and | egal standards w Il apply.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that honesty, fairness and good faith
are |audable, and if everyone followed them Jlaws and bills
woul d not be necessary.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that the courts nust enforce
t hese [ behaviors].

Nunber 2293

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there are any court cases
involving the failure [of realtors] to disclose.

M5. WNTON replied that the one case she knows about involved
residential property.

Nunber 2274
TRACEY RI CKER, Br oker, Ri cker and Associ ates; Pr esi dent,

Sout heast Board of Realtors, stated the board's position that it
does not support [HB 257] as witten. She said she would defer

to other witnesses waiting to testify. She expressed concern
why, when the industry is trying to sinplify the existing
di sclosure law of agency, the bill excludes conmmercial real
estate transactions. Wiy would the bill dimnish any public

protection in this industry, she asked.
Nunber 2237

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that in his 30 years as a
commercial broker this [disclosure] law, as it has evolved in
the past decade, has made his practice alnost inpossible. Wen
he has to file this kind of paperwork [referencing the 17-page
sanpl e disclosure forns], he said he can't even talk to a client
who has to send all these fornms to his legal staff back in

Detroit. He stated that he is being put out of business.
Therefore, [HB 257] 1is trying to balance the needs of the
general public and those of the comrercial public. He stated

that the anount of comrercial activity that goes on in this
community and Southeast Al aska is a thinbleful of what goes on
in the rest of the state. He said although he appreciates [the
W tnesses'] concerns, [HB 257 doesn't harn] the practice of real
estate in Southeastern Al aska. This section of the law is
upsetting and destroying comerce in this state, he said, and
it's creating a noving target for |awers. There's al ways been
tension between brokers of residential and comercial real
estate, he added.

M5. RICKER clarified that she is also a commerci al broker.

Nunber 2168

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 14, 2003



JEANNI E JOHNSON, Licensed Broker, explained that she has been
licensed in Alaska for 28 years. She has practiced 20 of those
years in Anchorage and eight years in Juneau and does both
resi denti al and conmerci al transacti ons. She said she
appreci ates Representative Rokeberg's work on behalf of the
i ndustry; he has been the [legislative] workhorse for a very
long tine. However, she expressed concern about HB 257.
Regar di ng questions [raised today] about realtors and conmercia
agents, the premer designation of a comercial real estate
broker is a Certified Comercial Investnent Menber (CCAM,
i ssued through the National Association of Realtors.

M5. JOHNSON said she has two concerns with HB 257. The
[ standards for exclusions in HB 257] are very low. For exanple,
exenpting transactions of four-plex [residential wunits] or
$100, 000; she said that a Fortune 500 conpany would not be
dealing with such small transactions. Therefore, she suggested
making the limts [for exenpted transactions] higher. She asked
if the Prudential lawsuit would be affected by the retroactivity
clause of this bill.

Number 2094

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d the pending case involves a $50, 000
| ot .

M5. JOHNSON confirnmed that the [affected] case was not the
Prudenti al suit. She expressed her concern about the
retroactivity of this bill. She inforned the commttee that she
has just returned from a convention of the Association of Real
Estate Licensed Law Oficials (ARELLO, attended by U S. and
Canadi an conm ssioners who regulate real estate |icensing. She
said Alaska is now fanpbus for one particular court case, which
she cannot discuss because she sits on the Real Estate
Comm ssion, who will eventually adjudicate [issues related to]
that suit.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the Prudential |awsuit has been
settled in court and a disciplinary action is pending before the
Real Estate Conmm ssion. The Prudential suit would not be
affected by HB 257 because there has been a final judgnent or
settl enent. He noted that there's another case [in court that
may be the subject of] a class action lawsuit. |In that case the
def endants have done everything they can to settle the case, but
[the plaintiffs have not nmade] an effort to [show] there was an
injury to any person. He stated that there's ulterior notives

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 14, 2003



[harnful to the real estate industry], and that's why [HB 257]
is before the conmttee.

IVS. JOHNSON reiterated her concern about t he bill's
retroactivity provision, which sets a precedent. There are
other [court cases] pending in the residential field, and she's
expressed concern about a "get out of jail free card.” She
said, "W work very long and hard in this industry to be
pr of essi onal s. "

Number 1986

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG di sagreed that [the retroactivity
clause] is a "get out of jail free card.” The |egislature can
act retroactively, he explained. He said he has personally
brought before this conmttee a nunber of [statutory fixes to
court] cases. This is not [the case of] a bad actor [getting

of f the hook], he said.

M5. JOHNSON suggested that the retroactivity clause be clarified
because other nenmbers of the committee have read it the sane
way.

Number 1950

JIM WAKEFI ELD said he would forgo his testinony in favor of
ot her wi tnesses.

Nunmber 1939

JEAN KAY, President, Valley Board of Realtors; Real Estate
Agent, ReMax of Wsilla; board nenber, Al aska Association of
Realtors, explained that she was speaking only for part of her
nmenbership because she was unable to poll all of the nenbers
before this hearing. She testified that HB 257 does not refl ect
the standards of practice of the real estate industry today.
The Al aska Association of Realtors has been working since 2002
on the issue of agency disclosure. She reiterated earlier
testinmony that the association's effort has taken two
directions: proposed regulation changes to the Real Estate
Comm ssion and proposed statutory changes that reflect the
standards of practice of the industry in this country. Thi s
commttee [of the Alaska Association of Realtors] has spent
countless hours neeting twice a nonth, and a nunber of state
laws were reviewed and are still wunder consideration by the
committee. She stated that HB 257 primarily pronotes the
interests of comercial realtors.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 14, 2003



M5. KAY noted that [classifying] a four-plex as a commerci al
[transaction] doesn't nmake sense. Owner -occupied financing is
avai |l abl e through FHA [ Federal Housing Adm nistration] for four-
pl exes, and many times those buyers and sellers are not

sophi sti cat ed. She said that the primary goal of both
regul ation changes and the proposed statue change has been
consuner protection. Consuners need to be aware for whom the
agents work and how they are conpensated. She said that this is
realtors' livelihood; how they treat people nakes all the
di fference. She asked that HB 257 not pass out of conmttee
until the Agency Task Force has a chance to present its findings
of fact. Sonme states that have passed real estate agency |aws

are having to revise them because of errors, she nentioned.
Nunber 1767

PADDY CQAN, Associate Broker, Valley Ofice, Prudential Vista
Real Est at €; past presi dent, Valley Board of Real t ors;
Secretary, Alaska Association of Realtors, President-Elect,
Wasilla Chanber of Comrerce, said that she was originally
licensed in 1982. She supervises 40 agents working in |and
sales, residential sales, property nmanagenent, and commerci al
sales and | easing. She testified that in the first three nonths
of 2003, her office <closed $25 nillion in real estate
transactions.

M5. COAN said that currently, real estate |icensees can be sued
and held l|iable for danmages, including punitive damages, for a
failure to disclose dual agency in witing in a tinely manner

She said that [this liability situation] does not help the

public. She said she prefers that dissatisfied buyers and
sellers come to brokerages to resolve problens rather than file
court cases over technicalities. She proposed elimnating

| awsuits over technical violations of the disclosure |aw and
having the real estate comm ssion handle failures to conply with
i censing | aws. In her area, which is the fasting growing in
t he stat e, [ dual agency] di scl osures for construction
[transactions] are very difficult [to determne]. She said that
the [Agency] Task Force has learned how difficult it is to
determ ne when dual agency nust be disclosed. For exanple, a
broker could neet soneone at an open house, and the person could
decide right then to wite an offer on the property; the broker
could technically be in violation of tinmely disclosure.

M5. COAN noted that under HB 257, buyers and sellers can stil
file conplaints with brokers; they can make a claim agai nst the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 14, 2003



surety fund; and they can still, if defrauded, bring a |awsuit
to the court. Commercial practitioners understand that there's
a period of due diligence [to disclose agency]. In comerci al

transactions, there's usually a greater degree of sophistication
of the parties. There's no loss of consunmer protection in HB
257, she testified. Ms. Coan clarified that this bill does not
exenpt conmmer ci al practitioners; it exenpt s conmerci a

transacti ons. In her office, she supervises people who do all

types of real estate activities, and they would not be
prohibited from disclosing their agency. The transaction
[ whet her residential or conmercial] would be the event that
woul d change that [requirenment to disclose]. She thanked
Representati ve Rokeberg for introducing HB 257, and stated that
she supports the bill

Nunmber 1585

DON ZI MVERVAN, Real EstateAlternative.com testified that he has
sold real estate since 1985. He spoke in support of HB 257. He
said he'd like for the Agency Task Force to continue its work on
the issue. He reiterated that [under HB 257], the disclosure is
determ ned by the type of transaction. He agreed that buyers
are nore sophisticated than they were 10 years ago. He pointed
out that buyers can use the Internet to research agents and
properties. Even on the residential side, he noted, consuners
can go to classes before they engage in any transactions. He
said he didn't" believe HB 257 in any way harns the public.
Legi slation should consider real estate |icensees as nenbers of

the public who need protection. He recomended [raising] the
limts [on exenpted transactions] on page 4, line 20, but he
would prefer [the exenption] being confined to commercial
transactions and elimnating any reference to dollar limts

because those change with the tines.
Number 1500

MARK LEE, CCIM (Certified Conmmercial Investnent Menber), Broker,
Lee Realty, testified that his practice is in comercial real

estate only. He said he does primarily |easing and sonme sal es
of commercial |and. He commented that the $12,000 |ease, on
page 4, line 23, is the equivalent of a $1,000 |ease per nonth.

Leasing should be on a conpletely different plane because the
broker is dealing wth comercial people and wth smal

busi nesses that have their bankers' advice. He'd like to see
| easing excluded [from disclosure requirenents] because the
agent always represents the property owner. The person out

| ooking for space to |lease certainly has enough business savvy

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 14, 2003



to recognize that fact. He supports this bill and would like to
see it nove forward.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Lee about his statenment to
exclude leasing activities. He asked if he would exclude | eases
bel ow $12, 000 a year or raise the leasing limt.

Number 1399

MR. LEE replied that he deals with |eases for very small spaces,
and they range from $650 to $3,000 a nonth. He suggested that
| easing activities be exenpt from disclosure requirenents. He
said the general public understands the |leasing agent's
responsibilities.

Number 1353

HOMRD TRI CKEY, Prudential Vista; Prudential Jack Wite, said
his comrents would be Iimted to subsection (g) on page 5, lines
1-5, and subsection (b), on page 5, lines 12-15. He said that

subsection (g) does not change or elimnate the obligation of a
residential broker to nake a dual agency disclosure. Al'l that

this section does is protect the broker froma frivolous |awsuit

where there's been no harm or danage done to any buyer or

consuner. Subsection (g) is intended to treat a technical

failure to disclose a dual agency relationship in witing in a
tinmely fashion. He said that it proposes to treat that failure
as a licensure violation for which disciplinary action could be
taken against the agency. If there's actual loss or harm
suffered [because of] a technical violation, a buyer may bring a
claimunder the [real estate surety] fund. The subsection does
not change a buyer's right under common law to bring a tort or

negl i gence action.

MR. TRICKEY noted that this change is consistent wth the only
ruling on this subject by the Alaska Suprene Court in 1979 in a
case entitled Deeds Beets(ph) v. Miers Real Estate Agent (ph).
He said that the suprene court ruled that an innocent,
unintentional failure to nake a disclosure should not give rise
to a claim to disgorge a commssion or turn over a conm SSion
after an actual damage or loss to the buyer. He said that
subsection (g) protects real estate agents and brokers from
frivolous lawsuits in cases when they have made a disclosure of
the agency relationship in good faith but nmy not have
technically made it in witing in a tinmely fashion.

Number 1201

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 14, 2003



MR. TRICKEY said he is currently defending Prudential Vista in a
class action lawsuit over a technical violation of the statute.
He said the lawsuit seeks that the agents and brokers, who
represented the sellers and buyers in the transactions and nade
di scl osure but didn't make the disclosure tinely, should forfeit
all conmm ssions earned over the past six years. He warned that
such a ruling would have a devastating inpact on the industry.
That case al so seeks punitive damages for a technical violation
of the statute, which the Alaska Supreme Court wouldn't
recogni ze as a breach of a fiduciary duty under the comon | aw.
[He] said he supports a proposed [anendnent] to subsection (Q)
that is before the conmttee.

Nunber 1138

MR. TRICKEY said subsection (b) [applies retroactively] to
pending cases for which no final judgnent has been entered.
When sone people object to a "get out of jail free card,” they
are referring to the well-known Bonnie Mehner case, which has
been settled, he noted. He said that the applicability
[provision] in Section 7 would not change the outcone of that
case, wth its judgnent for conpensatory danages, nor the
pendi ng di sciplinary proceedings. The court found that she nade
a material msrepresentation, and the two proposed amendnents,
whi ch he supports, would not change that outcone. [Under HB 257
and the two proposed anendnments,] no buyer is left unprotected
where they suffer an actual loss as the result of a
m srepresentation or fraud or deceit. The proposed anmendnents
to Section 6, subsections (g) and (f) [would prohibit] a suit
based on a technical violation of failure to make disclosure in
a tinely fashion. These proposed changes do not relieve
residential brokers of their obligation to make disclosures.
These two subsections, Section 6(g) and Section 7(b), are
applicable only to residential brokers. He said he doesn't have
any comments to make on the conmercial brokerage provisions of
the bill. He also comented that if this bill passes, the
| osers would be the lawers bringing frivolous |awsuits. After
these two sections [are anended], no buyers or consuners would
| ose, he said.

Number 0985
RI CK FULLER, Owner / Br oker, Prudenti al Vista Real Est at e,
responded to a question from Representative Rokeberg about why

[HB 257] is inportant to him He explained that he has been a
broker for 28 vyears, and was chairman of the Real Estate

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 14, 2003



Comm ssion for five years. He said that his conpany has an

outstanding reputation, is proactive in solving problens, and
doesn't have a rash of litigation. He said he doesn't think
that the litigator [who has a filed a lawsuit against his

conpany] is going to get class action status; however, he wants
to stop that possibility. He said that this court case is not
about solving problens; it's about using a technical violation
to strip his conmpany and the industry of the right to practice.
He said that the losers would be the public because the real
estate industry does a very good job of buying and selling rea

est ate. He said his conpany is being sued on a $50,000
transaction by owners of conpanies that do a billion dollars
worth of business annually. He said he has a reputation of

taking conplaint referrals and solving them He noted that no
other attorneys or clients have junped on the [class action]
bandwagon. He said he objects to an attorney getting rich on a
technicality.

Nunmber 0827

CHRIS STEPHENS, CCIM President, Bond, Stephens & Johnson,
explained that he's in a conference room with five other
brokers; another three had to |eave earlier. He authored the
[April 14, 2003] letter in the nenbers' packets. He expl ai ned
that his conpany is the |argest conmercial brokerage conpany in
the state. The conpany has 12 agents and |ast year the conpany
did 200 exclusively comrercial transactions, worth $300-%$400
mllion. He has been in the business 22 years and nost of the
conpany's agents have five or nore years of experience.

Number 0703

MR. STEPHENS referred to several wunintentional drafting errors
in HB 257. He stated that HB 257 is trying to rectify two
issues in current |aw dual agency and disclosure. He said
that in a dual agency situation, the |aw prohibits brokers from
di scussing price or terns with a client. Dual agency occurs
when the broker has an established relationship with the other
party or if the other agent works for the same conpany. |If the
buyer is brought in by an agent from another conpany, then it's
not dual agency. The aforenentioned |eads to sone ridicul ous
si tuations. Hi s conpany experiences a |large proportion of dual
agency comercial transactions for several of reasons. M.
St ephens expl ained that [Alaska] has a very snall business and
i nvestment comrunity. So he ends up dealing wth the sane
peopl e and the organi zations on all sides of a transaction quite
frequently. He said the result is a dual agency relationship.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 14, 2003



All commercial property [transactions] tend to be conplex; the
agents know one another and talk about their properties. He
noted that his firm has been hired by his clients because of its
tremendous expertise, but the law prohibits his firm from
[ exercising that expertise]. He described the loser as the
person who wants to put these transactions together; his agents
can't say anything because of the dual agency statutes.

MR. STEPHENS described a recent situation, in which he had a
property he was selling for the heirs of an estate. He had
three offers, two from agents outside his conpany, and one from
agents in his conpany. He said he sat down with the heirs to
review these offers and to decide which of these offers to
counter and pursue. He could discuss the first two but he
couldn't discuss the offer from an agent within his conpany. He
concluded that [this legal restraint] doesn't help the public,
the consuner, or the econony. To try to do business under these
circunstances is just about inpossible, he said. He said the
current law is making crimnals of honest people, who are trying
to do the best they can for their clients.

Number 0519

MR. STEPHENS next discussed the disclosure forns, included in
his letter to the conmttee, which was devel oped by an attorney
for his conpany so it could conply with the |aw He said the
paperwork is volum nous. He said he deals with a lot of
national conpanies, and their [representatives] just put [the
di sclosure fornms] aside because they mght not have the
authority to sign them and they don't want to take the tinme to
send themto their national real estate departnent soneplace [to
be reviewed]. Local businesses don't know what to do with the
formse either, he said. H's conpany is trying to transact
[ business] and these [forns] aren't helping. He deals wth
experienced business people who, if they want sonebody to
represent them wll say so.

MR. STEPHENS stated that, contrary to the prior testinony, this
[ sophi sticated understanding of agency and disclosure] is a
standard of practice of commercial real estate in Anchorage and
in Alaska for the past 22 years. He said he also works wth
national brokers selling properties to people outside the state.
He noted that another five people are waiting patiently at his
site to testify.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- April 14, 2003



CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the bill will not be passed out of
commttee today because of the nunber of people who still want
to testify.

Number 0302
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nvited himto send witten coments.

MR. STEPHENS stated there were other people extrenely concerned
about the bill who wanted to testify. He said several agents
from other conpanies had already |left because they could not
stay for the whole hearing. The follow ng people introduced
t hensel ves: Stuart Bond, Tim Spernak, Joe LoMnaco, Geg
Johnson, M ke MElligott, Bob Arns, and Marc Dunne.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that these agents were nenbers of M.
St ephens’ firm

Number 0212

TOM MARTI N, Broker, A+ Realty, stated that he has been in the
real estate industry since 1991, is the past president of the
Kodiak Board of Realtors, and does both residential and

comercial work. He said he disagrees with the bill. He
mentioned recent regulatory changes that are inproving the
standards of practice wthin the industry. He conpared the
[unethical] practices of Arthur Anderson [a national accounting
firm wth common practices in the real estate industry. He
noted that "all of a sudden when the stuff hits the fan, it was
| ooked at from a totally different perspective.” M. Martin
described the need to carefully disclose agency to individuals
who have I|limted know edge of the English |anguage. He

reconmended increasing the [threshold for comercial exenptions]
in Section 6, changing the $100,000 limt on page 4, line 20, to
$500 mllion and changing the $12,000 a year limt on page 4,
line 23, to $1 nmillion. He favored letting the courts settle
litigation [rather than including the retroactive clause in HB
257] .

Nunmber 0076

DAVE FEEKEN, Chair, Legislative Commttee, Al aska Association of
Realtors; ReMax of the Peninsula, summarized the history of the
di sclosure issue. In 1984, there was a |lawsuit in Hawaii, where
the standard real estate practice was subagency, that is, a real
estate agent represented the seller only. The lawsuit inspired
a federal review of agency practices in the real estate

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- April 14, 2003



i ndustry. That conm ssion found that 80 percent of [consuners]
who were working wth an agent thought the agent was
representing them This pronpted the National Association of
Real tors (NAR) [tape ends m d-statenent.]

TAPE 03-35, SIDE A
Number 0010

MR. FEEKEN recounted that NAR agreed to push agency disclosure
laws in all states in order to prevent the nationalization of
the real estate industry. He cited a 1989 case in M nnesota,
the Edina Real Estate case, that dealt with an undiscl osed dua
agency situation very simlar to the class action suit pending

in Al aska. He explained that there are two types of dual
agency: di scl osed, consensual dual agency that is legal, and
undi scl osed dual agency, which is illegal in all 50 states. The

result of undisclosed dual agency can be the forfeiture of
comm ssion if found guilty, recession of the contract, fraud
punitive damages, and the loss of |icense. M. Feeken opined
that this bill trivializes what the two |awsuits and the federa
governnment consider a very inportant consuner protection issue.
He stated that Representative Rokeberg is attenpting to abrogate
common | aw. Thirteen states have attenpted this [approach] in
their licensing |aws, and none of them have been successful [in
court]. He said that there's got to be a [standard] rul ebook
and when people get in trouble in all of these other states
they go back to common |aw to decide how to deal with the issue.

Nunber 0219

DAVI D GARRI SON, Associ ate Broker, AAR #1 Buyers' Agency; nenber,
Anchorage Board of Realtors; Buyer Agent, National Association
of Exclusive Buyer Agents, explained that he works only on the
buyer's side of the transaction and that his firm handles both
comercial and residential properties. He warned that if the
[the |egislature] stops requiring agency disclosure, t he
consuner will be hurt. He explained that he is doing a rea
estate transaction with an agent in Chicago, and that person
di scl oses whom he is representing. He said that the issue is
not about the different disclosure practices between realtors in
big towns and snall towns. M. G@Grrison said he favors
retaining the disclosure requirenent [in state law]. He opposes
the "get out of jail free" provision in [Section 7 of] the bill
He said an agent should have a fiduciary duty to represent the
buyer or the seller. If that 1is changed, he said the
[legislature] should sunset the Real Estate Comm ssion and |et
the [real estate] marketplace go [unregul ated].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- April 14, 2003



Number 0392

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN confirnmed that the Chicago transaction M.
Garri son nentioned was of a comrerci al nature.

Nunmber 0439

LI NDA GARRI SON, AAR #1 Buyers' Agency, questioned why the big
hurry to pass HB 257. She noted the work of the [Al aska
Associ ation of Realtors'] legislative commttee, the Agency Task
Force commttee, and its subconmttee, and urged the commttee
to wait until these groups had finished their work, even if it
means waiting until next session. M. @Grrison said she opposes
any retroactive provisions in state |aw because they renove the
checks and balances between the legislature and judicia
syst ens. She testified that [HB 257] protects the real estate

agent, not the public or the consuner. She said that buyer
agency and seller agency are very sinple relationships with a
fiduciary duty. Ms. Garrison stated that dual agency only
benefits one person; but buyers and sellers have the right to
deci de  whet her they want a dual agent or their own
representation. She said she does not support abrogation of

conmon | aw.

Number 0635

CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed public testinmny on HB 257.

Number 0649

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 257 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 257 was passed from the

House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

HB 255- WAGES: TRAI NI NG FLEX- TI ME/ DEFI NI TI ONS

Number 700

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 255, "An Act anmending the Al aska Wage and Hour
Act as it relates to flexible work hour plans, the provision of
training wages, and the definitions of certain terns; and
repealing the exenption in the Act from the paynent of m ninmm
wages for learners.”

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- April 14, 2003



Nunmber 0845

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, as sponsor of HB 255, testified that
the bill covers three sections of the Al aska Wage and Hour Act
[ AS 23.10. 050-150] and the related regul ations. He said HB 255
adjusts the definitions of who is managenent, |ooks at flexible
wor k hour provisions, and revises the provisions for training
wages [for workers | ess than 20 years of age].

Number 0900

FRANK ROSE, President, Alaska Hotel and Lodging Association;
Owmner, Alaska Lodging Managenment, spoke in support of HB 255.
He testified that Sections 1 and 2 of the bill realistically
define executive, admnistrative, and professional positions as
they relate to exenpt enployees and overtime status. He said
the bill also makes the definitions consistent with federal |aw.
He said that is a very inportant [factor] in his business
oper ati ons. Section 3 of the bill provides for |ong-overdue
changes to the voluntary flexible work hour plan, allowng
flexible work hours [sinply] wupon agreenent [after] filing
[ paperwork with the Departnent of Labor] for the flexible work
hour [plan]; approval wusually involves a rubber stanp [by the
departnent]. The [law] assures that the enployer and the
enpl oyee agree on the ternms of a 40-hour work week, [usually]
wi th four 10-hour days. And | astly, he noted, the hospitality
i ndustry supports changes to the training wage |egislation that
give enployers nore opportunities to train young people in new

wor k envi ronnent s. He said that businesses need to be able to
enpl oy young people for full work weeks so that they can be
given the training. [Current regulations limt youth on |ower
wages to 30 hours per week.] This provision provides an

incentive to hire [young] people who don't have experience and
who woul dn't ot herw se be hired, he said.

Number 1024

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Rose to explain what he neant
by getting the voluntary flexible work hour plan rubber-stanped.

MR. ROSE explained that two of his conpanies have needed
flexi ble work hour plans. They filled out the fornms and sent
them to the Departnent of Labor; and two weeks later they cane
back approved. He confirnmed that they were for 4-day, 10-hour
wor k weeks.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- April 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that the Departnent of Labor
will approve 4-day, 10-hour work weeks but nothing else. He
noted that working parents are demanding nore flexibility in
their schedules so they can |look after their children. He asked
if that worked for his industry.

MR. ROSE replied yes, and that it's a real incentive for an
enployee if they can [get these flexible hours]. He said it
benefits the enployer as well.

Number 1085

CHAI R ANDERSON asked his thought about AS 23.10.055(11), which
exenpts from Al aska's mni nrum wage youth who are under the age
of 18 and work less than 30 hours a week; they can be paid at
the lower rate of $5.15 per hour. He asked M. Rose how he
would respond to folks who protest being hired at the |ower
wage.

Nunber 1140

MR. ROSE said that businesses are providing a service to young
people; training that individual to do the job is pretty
i ntensi ve. He said that many enployers would prefer to hire an
experienced person to do the job. The question is whether these
hires are just to save noney. He assured the commttee that the
[enpl oyer's] effort to train a 17-year-old to be a productive
wor ker is a public service.

Nunmber 1169

JON FAULKNER, Owmer/operator, Land's End Resort; Van GCuilder
Hotel, explained that he has run these hotels for 14 years. He
said he enploys 125 people in the sumertine and roughly 75 in
the wnter. Land's End Resort is the largest private sector
enployer in Honer; Honmer is perennially one of the areas of
hi ghest unenploynent in the state. He said he knows what it
nmeans to put people to work and the effort it takes to stay open
in the winterti ne.

MR. FAULKNER said he supports HB 255, Sections 1 and 2 in
parti cul ar. He stressed that it is critical to clarify and
define what 1is supervisory, professional, and executive. He
said he has been sued [over the definition of supervisory] and
|l ost and cane close to filing bankruptcy [to pay the court-
ordered damages] in the case, Land's End v. Chase. He stated
that when these cases are settled, they cost the industry

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- April 14, 2003



mllions of dollars every year and are a |awer's delight. The
current Al aska law [ AS 23.10.055. Exenptions] varies so far from
the federal Ilaw that enployers [are handicapped by] very
anbi guous definitions of supervisory. H s case involved his
restaurant manager who operated a year-round restaurant with 65
enpl oyees, who hired and fired staff, and negotiated $200, 000
purchase contracts with vendors. Yet in the wintertine, when
the business fell down to 15 dinners a night, she managed the
floor and kitchen fromthe hostess station. This nanager proved
that she spent nore than 20 percent of her tine standing in a
hostess station, so the court determ ned that she did line |evel
work and was not exenpt from overtine pay. The result was
treble danmages and her lawer's fees; he wote a check for
$100, 000 that took himto the edge of bankruptcy. As a result,
he placed every enployee on hourly pay and refuses to hire

anyone on salary. M. Faul kner said that this policy hurts
enpl oyees because they don't qualify for certain benefits, and
it restricts them in other ways. He said HB 255 affects

i ndependent, Al askan-owned, and -operated businesses that are
t he backbone of rural econom c devel opnent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if he deals with the voluntary
flex time issue.

Nunmber 1491

MR. FAULKNER replied that he uses flex tine in his maintenance
departnment, which has seasonal work. He said it hel ps people
who have to work two jobs. He said the Departnent of Labor

approval is very cunbersone. There is often a two-week delay in
getting the paperwork back. He said he only uses the 4-10 work
week, usually wth maintenance, sonetimes wth security
enpl oyees.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked about the training wages as described in
Section 4, page 5.

MR. FAULKNER said he supported the concept, but pointed out
troubl esone | anguage [lines 6-9] which read,

An enployer may not take an action to displace an
enpl oyee, including partial displacenents such as
reduction in hours, wages, or enploynent benefits, for
purposes of hiring individuals at the wage authorized
in this subsection.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- April 14, 2003



MR. FAULKNER explained his point with the exanple of hiring a
mai nt enance or server trainee. Two nonths later, he reduces
hours, because [in the hospitality industry, the enployer] is
al ways changing the staff |evels. A disgruntled enployee wll
point out that his hours were reduced so that another enployee
could be hired at the training wages. He warned that this
| anguage wi Il create exposure for the enployer. Ni nety days is
not very long to have soneone at a training wage. He suggested
maki ng certain positions eligible for training wages.

Number 1609

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked two questions about the benefits
M. Faul kner offers to his hourly and sal ari ed enpl oyees.

Number 1642

MR. FAULKNER said he used to expect nore of a sal aried enpl oyee.
When he stopped paying salaries, he no |longer paid the benefits
associated with salary positions. He confirnmed that paying
benefits is discretionary; the |aw does not require the enpl oyer
to pay benefits. He said he had offered his salaried enployees
heal th benefits of a reinbursable type.

KAREN ROG NA, Al aska Hospitality Alliance, explained that her
organi zation includes the Al aska Hotel and Lodgi ng Association

the Al aska Restaurant and Beverage Association, and the Al aska
Hospitality Alliance Education Foundation. She testified in
favor of HB 255. She said her nenbership includes over 80
percent of the lodging roonms in the state and over 100 food and
beverage operations in the state, enpl oying over 20,000
Al askans. She said that enployees in the industry gain valuable
work experience that readily transfers to other industries.
According to the National Restaurant Association, over one third
of the labor force today in the United States got its start in
the hospitality industry. "W are the training ground of
Anmerica's work force," she said.

M5. ROG NA said she supports HB 255 because it encourages
enpl oynent and the devel opnent of workers in the industry while
protecting the slim profit margins of the nenbers' operations.
She testified that the current statute discourages enploynent
growt h and devel opnent while eroding bottomline profits. Gven
the recent changes in the wage and hour |aw [nmandating an annua
cost of living adjustnent in the mninum wage], the current
econom ¢ downturn has also been very hard on the industry. She
noted that the alliance recently conmssioned a study to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- April 14, 2003



quantify the inpacts of the economc downturn and the m ninnum
wage | aw. She added that anecdotal information shows that
enpl oyees are being laid off, enployee benefits are being cut,
vacati on packages are being cut, and fewer workers under the age
of 21 are being hired because of these factors. She stated that
HB 255 encourages the devel opnent of enployees, and she urged
the commttee to pass HB 255 out of conmttee.

Nunber 1845

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked her opinion of the current
training wage provision that allows young people to work 30
hours a week.

M5. ROG NA replied that the current statute allows young people
[up to age 18] to be paid $5.15 an hour, up to 30 hours a week.
She cautioned that if they work beyond 30 hours a week, there
isn't a nechanismin place to track those hours and send up an

alert. This [bill] changes that to 40 hours a week, and every
enpl oyer has that nechanism in place to identify when an
enpl oyee hits the 40-hour Ilimt [for purposes of conputing
overtine]. So, administratively, this is a lot easier to put

into place, she said. The increase [in the age Ilimt from18 to
20] years opens up a pool of young people who need that
experience in the workforce and the opportunity to ascend [the
j ob | adder].

CHAI R ANDERSON asked about a 17-year old working at Wendy's 20
hours a week. He asked her to explain how that works.

Nunber 1915

M5. ROG NA said that currently they can be paid the training
wage only if they work less than 30 hours ongoing. In the
summertine, they mght work nore hours. It's so difficult to

track [the 30 hours] that people just don't do it.

CHAI R ANDERSON confirned that if young person works one hour
nore than the 30 hour [limt], all 31 hours nust be paid at the
hi gher [m nimun] wage. He asked what happens when the young
wor ker turns 20 if this bill passes.

M5. ROG NA explained that if a 19-year-old works at the training
wage for a nonth, when she turns 20, she would have to be paid
at the higher wage. She confirnmed that HB 255 allows for 40
hours a week for the first 90 days.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- April 14, 2003



Nunber 1972

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what percentage of enployees fit
into these definitions of sumrer or seasonal hires and would be
eligible for the training wage.

M5. ROG NA said that information is not currently avail able, but
the Al aska Hotel and Lodging Association recently comm ssioned
the McDowell Goup to do a study that quantifies that kind of
detail.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how many of the young people
hired in this industry are non-Al askan, sunmer travel ers.

M5. ROG NA replied that she didn't know but would find that
informati on and send it to him

Nunber 2024

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that he didn't want to be accused
of running a child sweatshop. He asked Ms. Rogina if she thinks
this wage can be used properly to train young people for a job.
Is there anything in the bill that prevents paying a teenager at
t he hi gher wages, he asked.

M5. ROG NA said HB 255 allows the market to [determ ne] what
young people are paid. Wthin 90 days, the enployer has a good
sense of the value of that enployee. She said there's high
turnover in the beginning.

Nunber 2079

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that if an enployer hires a young
person at the |ower wage who proves of value, the enployer m ght
raise the wage immediately to the $7.15 or above to hang on to a
good enpl oyee. He al so asked whether the flex-tine provisions
will help her nenber enployers hire working parents who need
schedule flexibility.

M5. ROGA NA said absolutely, especially on the hotel side, which
is a [round the clock] industry as is the case in restaurants as
wel | . The industry hires a lot of people that have unique
schedul i ng requirenents. O fering enployees flexible schedul es
allows themto fit into the workforce nore readily.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG confirned that sonme of her l|arger hotels
and restaurants have union enpl oyees, and that sonme of the union

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- April 14, 2003



contracts allow for split shifts. He asked if they are exenpt
from the Wage and Hour Act because they have collective
bar gai ni ng.

M5. ROG NA said that union contracts often negotiate this kind
of flex tine. But nonuni on enployers are also able to, so this
| evel s the playing field.

CHAIR ANDERSON noted that the rest of +the people in the
commttee room were willing to wait until the next neeting to
testify. He noted that HB 255 will be held over.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:40 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -37- April 14, 2003



